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(a) Bac und information

Nyeri Cou
accountabil

by the Cour

irty Enterprises Development Fund is established by and derives its authority and

ity from Nyeri County Enterprises Development Act 2018. The Fund is wholly owned

!,ty Gou"rn-"nt of Nyeri and is domiciled in Kenya.

The fund's objective is to:

a)

b)

c)

Proi

,upi

d)

e)

0
c)

prol
ben(

prol
supl

h)

supl

Coo

Prol

(b) Princ

The Fund'
County as

ride affordable loans to applicants stipulated under section 20 operating in Nyeri county;

:ort capacity building ofthe beneficiaries;

zide training, mentorship and provision of business development services to

:ficiaries;
note enterprise development in Nyeri County;

rcrt micro and small enterprises to develop linkages with large enterprises

promote marketing ofproducts and services for the enterprises:

port technology acquisition, adoption and utilization by Micro and small enterprises and

iperatives 
Societies: and

hote gainful employment through enterprise development.

ipal Activities

principal activity is to provide affordable loans to applicants operating in Nyeri

ipulated under the Nyeri County Enterprise development Fund Act.

(c) Key anagement

Rcf
I John Githinji Nduru Board Chairpersor/ Cooperative representative

I'os itio n

2 Euni ;e Wangari Mwathi Board Vice-Chairperson / Youth Rep

Fund AdministratorJ Annt : Wangui Githinji
PWLD Rep+ Lydi lh Wanj iru Mwangi

) Jackr ron Githigi Kanyingi Nyeri Business Community Rep

(t Ibrah im Adan Chief Officer Trade. Tourism and Co-operative

Development

7 Harri son Ngari Representative of the Director of Trade

KEY ENTITY INFORMATION ANI) MANAGEMENT

Name
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(d) FiduciaryManagement

The key management personnel who held office during the financial year ended 30m June
2019 and who had direct fiduciary responsibility were:

(lnclude all positions regarded as top mondgement in your organisation)

(e) FiduciaryOversightArrangements

The above were the account signatories for the period ended 30,h June 2019. Their role was
oversight of the fund operations and expenditure. They also support all fund investments and
activities in the year.

KEY ENTITY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(f) EntityHeadquarters

Nyeri County Enterprise Development Fun<i Board,
P.O. Box I I t2-10100
Nyeri, KENYA
Opposite Nyeri Golf Club along Kamakwa Road

(g) Entity Contacts

E-mai[: nyericountyedf@gmai l.com
Website: wvr.v.nyeri o.ke

(h) Entity Bankers

Cooperative Banl< Nyeri
Nyeri Branch

P.O. Box 192-10100
Nyeri, Kenya

No. Designation Namc
Chief Officer Trade. Tourism
Cooperative Development

and

Fund Administrator
J Nyeri Business Community Rep

Anne Wangui Githinji
Jackson Githigi Kanyingi

lbrahim Adan

4 Youth Rep Eunice Wangari Mwathi

II
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(i) Ind endent Auditors

Audi or General

Ken National Audit Ofllce
ary Towers. University Way

ox 30084 - GOP 00100
\i . Kenl'a

U) Prin ipal Legal Adviser

The General

State w' Office
e Avenue

P.O. x 40112 - City Square 00200

N i. Kenya

Anni
P.O.
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THE I]OARI) 1\IE}IBERS

MANAGEMI]NT TEAN|

Chairperson / Cooperative representative

Nyeri Business Community Rep

Chief Officer Trade. Tourism and Cooperative
Development

Representative of the Director Trade

Secretariat/ Principal Industrialization olfi cer

Name Position

I . John Githinj i Nduru

2. Eunice Wangari Mwathi

3. Anne Wangui Githinji Fund Administrator

4. Lydiah Wanjiru Mwangi PWLD Rep

5. Jackson Githigi Kanyingi

6. lbrahim Adan

7. Hanison Ngari

Name ol'the stalr Responsibility

Ibrahim Adan Chief Officer Trade. 'lourism and Cooperative
Development

Monicah Wachira

Anne .W. Githinji Fund Administrator

l

I vice-Chairp"rson / youth Rep

I

I

I

I

l



For the v ended ,lunc 30,2019

CHAIRl\'lAN'S STATEM EN'I'

It is with
Developm

I

{reat pleasure on behalf of the Board Members to present Nyeri County Enterprise

erit Fund vear 2018/2019 financial statements.

I

I

r{ceived Kshs. 30 Million as its seed capital late in the financial yer 2017/2018. The'fhe Fund

Nyeri Cou
.\nnual Re

made signi
challenges

challenges

The Board lci

healthy port!
institutions. 'l

During the y

E n le rp r ise Deve I op nte n t fu n d
rts and Financial Statements

ficant milestones towards implementation of the fund. We have however faced a few
I

but the successes exceed all the challenges. We have continuously leamt from the

ahd our strategy is well informed.

oks forward to disbursing the loans out of the entire kitty of the fund and maintaining a

blio book. We are positive the lund will grow to compete with tier one financial

[n;s 
nrna will promote the micro and small enterprises in Nyeri County.

lar. the Cooperative representative was appointed the Chairperson of the Board and

Board has received support from the County Govemment of Nyeri in rolling out the fund and have

The first silnificant achievement in FY 2018i l9 the sensitization activity that was conducted at

three levels: County Assembly Trade Committee Members on the rollout plan, which received

support. Thg sub county and ward administrators also underwent a training so that they can help the

applicants fiU in the fbrms and handle questions. The next level was to the General public which
were held in all eight sub-counties and campaigns about the Nyeri County Enterprise Development

through noti es and in social media. The participants were educated on the ACT, the purpose ofthe
lund and the objectives of the EDF, how to fill the application form and the required documents

The Board ceived 143 applications that are currently under review. The Board have advised on
procurement]of a financial institution to partner for disbursement and management of the fund.

Among the buccesses the Board invested the Funds in a call deposit account that eamed Kshs.

973,000. The fund has also continually improved the loan guidelines which shall be used in
appraising thp loans and in general administration ofthe fund.

Key challenfe was most applicants did not attend sensitization forums and therefore poorly filled in
applications. We are however grateful to the secretariat that have relentlessly called the applicants

and it's a gre at milestone to where we are

ntative was appointed. The board members are committed to continually
yeri in this Fund.

to the Management team and the secretariat for their immense support and

seltless servi e that has seen this lund to where it is now. May the almighty abundantly bless you.

Board Chairfr (jrson

II

Signature...
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PUND ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT
I am honorlred to present highlights for the flnancial year 201812019. 1 he year presented signilicant

challenges ]majorly attributed on how to rollout the Fund.

The fund rollout kicked off with sensitization and training for the key stakeholders in the

implementftion. The county assembly committee for trade tourism and co-operative development

was raken through the act. regulations. the workout plan, the process of loan application, loan

appraisal hnd vetting and thereafter approval. The next group to be sensitized were the

administraiors at the ward and sub-county. They were a key pillar in implementing the fund as they

had a role fn receiving the loan applications and suhmit them to the secretariat. The administrators

were also sensitized on the processes. the laws and regulations so that they could handle any

questions. 
,

The sensitif,ation of the general public was conducted at the sub-county level from 25th July to 3'd

august. Cill for application fottowed from 8th August to 9s September 2018. Campaigns through

various chdnnels were employed like advertising in the County Government's Website and official

social medla pages inviting all interested individuals to submit their applications.

A total of !43 applications were received, appraisal, verification and vetting was then carried out by

the secretairiat. The secretariat consists of technical people with experience and skills in loan

analysis, a{nraisal and monitoring. 81 applications met the minimum requirements and qualified for

business viNits.

The Busindss Visits were conducted betr,r'een 22nd &26b October 2018. The main purpose of the

business viiit was to verify that rhe applicants had operational businesses or they were engaging in

the activiti{s that they had indicated in their applications. 66 applications were recommended for

the final afpraisal and documents perfection. At this point the Board made a decision to involve a

financial i$titution to partner with in disbursemenl and management of the loan. Procurement of a

financial idstitution started in April 2019 and its ongoing thus the delay in disbursement of the

loans. I

The Board I

Kshs. s00,d

however approved one loan to be a pilot case for the process and a disbursement of
00 was disbursed in June 2019. The Board also made a decision to approve to put the

fund in an Interest eaming account and we eamed Kshs. 973,000. The expenses for the year were

fshs. 320.(00. The balance in the fund account as at 301h June 2019 was Kshs. 30,077,155.25

In the confing year. the board is committed to ensuring that the entire amount is disbursed to

within Nyeri County as it is the purpose of the fund. More products offering

itization and induction exercises will be conducted throughout the county to

ups are aware of the availabiliry of the fund, requirements, process and

tbr the loans as well as prudent management of the loan upon disbursement

Administ f the Fundra tor o

A" LName. nl C;U,w
J

lv

Signature
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COIIPORATE GOVERNANCF], STATEMENT

The Board held three meetings in the financial year and all meetings had a quorum. The secretariat
has young technical people to ensure succession. The Board charter has not been developed though
the activities undertaken by the secretariat are included in the department.s charter.
The nominations procedure was issued by the County Executive Committee Member for Trade as
follows:

a. Representative of the Business Communitv
Two groups/associations with
Community

maJor representation of the Business

Each groups/associations to nominate two people ofthe opposite gender
The nominees should be residents ofNyeri County
The nominees should not be from the same Sub-County to ensure regional
balance

One person will then be appointed to represent this particular category.

b. Youth

Two groups/associations with major representation of the youth in creative
industry

Each groups/associations to nominate two people ofthe opposite gender
The nominees should be residents ofNyeri County
The nominees should not be from the same Sub-County to ensure regional
balance

One person will then be appointed to represent this parficular category

lt
iii
iv

ll.
ln.
lv.

c. COOPERATIVE
Two cooperatives with major of membership from Nyeri County
Each cooperative to nominate two people ofthe opposile gender
The nominees should be residents ofNyeri County
The nominees should not be from the same Sub-County to ensure regional
balance

v. One person will then be appointed to represent this particular category
Persons living with disability (PLWD)

i National Council for persons living with disability has been identifled as the
most representative association for pLWD involved in the county.

ii. Submit names of two Nominees wtro should be residents of Nyeri County
iii. The nominees should be running a micro and small enterprise development
iv. The nominees should not be from the same Sub-County to ensure regional

balance

v. Only one will then be appointed from the two nominees.

For a person to be eligible ror appointment as a member the following criteria should be met -

l.

ii.
i ii.
ir'.

d
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(a)isaK yan cltlzen:

(b) holds minimum of a diploma tiom a recognized institution in Kenyal

(c) has op ted a business which is a micro and small enterprise in the County for a period of
three ye

1d) Satisfi{s the requirements of Chapter Six ofthe Constitution.
I

The memb[rs of the Board may be removed from office for-

I

(a) gro$s violation ofthe Constitution or any other law;

(b) erof misconduct, whether in the performance of the member's functions or otherwise;

(c) Phylical or mental incapacity to perform the functions ofoffice; or

(d) Incd)mpetence or neglect of duty.

County Enterprise Development Fund further provides that the County Executive

[sponsible for Trade may, upon the recommendation of the Board, revoke the

ft of a *ember of the Board on any ofthe above mentioned grounds.

The lollow ng reasons may result in the ceasing to be a member of the Board: -

(a) resi

Trade:

tion in writing, to the County Executive Member for the time being responsible lbr

(b) con ction of a criminal offence resulting in a sentence to a term of imprisonment of not

less th six months:

(c) bein declared bankrupt:

(d)being unable to perform the functions of his or her office by reason of mental or ph1'sical

lncapacr :or

(e) Dies

Where a v cy occurs in the membership of the Board, the County Executive Member for the

time being sponsible for Trade shall, if the vacancy relates to non-ex- olficio members appoint

er in accordance with the provisions ofthis Acta ne\\' ntenl

Vt
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSI()N AND ANAI,YStS

In June 2018 the Nyeri county Enterprise development fund received Kshs. 30,000,000.00 fiom the
Nyeri Govemment County treasury. 3% of the amount was meant to be for administrative
expenditures. This amounted to Ksh.900. 000.00.

The balance of Ksh. 29.100,000.00 was deposited in a call account in Cooperative bank in the

month of August 2018. This eamed an interest on deposil of ksh. g73.670.25 as at May 2019.A loan
of Ksh. 500,000 was disbursed in June 2019. The current bank balance amounts to Ksh.
30,077,1 55.25.

The fund has no outstanding debts to any institution or individual. However. one loan worth Kshs.
500,000 was lent out and is set to be recovered in the next two years.

The Fund has observed all statutory provisions and envisions to continue being compliant. The risks
likely to face the Fund are default risk which has been mirigated by having all applicants provide
security lor their loans. Insurance against death and permanent disability will be undertaken for all
borrowers-
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REPORT 
PF 

THE BOARI)

The Direcr{rs submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended

June 30,20119 which show the state of the entity s affairs.

Principal {tiriti".

J,The princi activities of the entity are to provide affordable loans to applicants stipulated under

the Nveri c unty Enterprise development Fund Act, operating in Nyeri County.

Results

o

The results f the entity for the year ended June 30, 2019 are set out on page 2-6o

Directors

The membeis of the Board of Directors who served during the year are shown on page v. During the

year 20lS-2[19 no director retired/ resigned and one was board member was appointed with effect

from l4'h Afril 2019.

Dividendsi$urplus remission

In accordanrie with Section 2 t 9 (2) of the Public Financial Management Act regulations, regulatory
I

entities shalf remit into Consolidated Fund, ninety per centum of its surplus funds reported in the

audited finafrcial statements after the end oleach financial year. Or the entity remined Kshs - (FY

2018 Kshs t. The entitV did not make any surplus during the year (FY 2018 Nil) and hence no

remittance tf the Consolidated Fund. IEntities to edit accordingly]

Auditors I

I

The Auditol General is responsible for the statutory audit of the entity in accordance with Article
229 of rhe JConstitution of Kenya and the Public Audit Act 2015 or XYZ Certified Public

Accountants] were nominated by the Auditor General to carry out the audit of for the yearlperiod

ended June lO, ZOfe in accordance to section 23 ofthe Public Audit Act. 2015 which empowers the

Auditor Genreral to appoint an auditor to audit on his behalf.

By Order of 
]

The Nyeri Cl

funa Secretlrr
Nleri Countf
Date:

the Board

lunty Enterprise Derelopmenr Fund.

l
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

Section 8l ofthe Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and (section l1 oJ'the State Corporations
Act, - (entities should quote the applicable legi.slation under which they are regulctted)) require the
Directors to prepare financial statements in respect of that entity. which give a true and lair view of
the state ofaffairs of lhe entity at the end of the financial yearlperiod and the operating results of the
entity fu that yeariperiod. The Directors are also required to ensure that the enij keeps propei
accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial position oithe entity. The
Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of thr rntity.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the entity's financial sateFents,
which give a true and fair view of the state of aflairs of the entity for and as at the end of the financial
year (period) ended on June 30, 2019. This responsibility includes: (i) maintaining adequate
financial management arrangements and enswing that these continue to be effective throughout the
reporting period; (ii) maintaining proper accounting records. which disclose with reasonable
accruacy at any time the financial position of the entity; (iii) designing, implementing antr
maintaining intemal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements, and ensuring that they are free from material misstatements. whether due to error or
fraud; (iv) safeguarding the assets of rhe entity; (v) selecting a,d applying appropriate accounting
policies; and (vi) making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Directors accept responsibility for the e/r/ror r financial statements, which have been prepared
using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates,
in conformity with Intemationat Pubtic Sector Accounting Standards (lpSAS), and in the maffrer
required by the PFM Act.2012 and (the State Corporations Act) - entities should quote applicable
legislation as indicated under ) . The Directors are of the opinion that the entity's financial statements
give a true and fair view ofthe state of entity's transactions during the financial year ended June 30,
2017. and of the entit)"s flnancial position as at that date. The Directors further confirm the
completeness of the accounting records maintained for the entity. which have been relied upon in the
preparation of the entity's llnancial statements as well as the adequacy of the systems of intemal
financial control.

Nothing has come to the attention of the Directors to indicate that the entiy) will not remarn a going
concem for at least the next tw.elve months from the date ofthis statement.
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REPOR ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

and actu lamounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229
ution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. I have obtained

all the i rmation and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were
for the purpose of the audit.

ln my ion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial

I have
Develo
position
changes

policies
of the C

necessa

position
financial

The aud
lnstitutio
accorda
in acco

Key A

Key a

udited the accompanying financial statements of Nyeri County Enterprise
nt Fund set out on pages 1 to 54, which comprise the statement of financial

s at 30 June, 2019, and the statement of financial performance, statement of
n net assets, statement of cash flows and statement of comparison of budget

with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other ethical responsibilities
nce with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical requirements

t Matters

Nyeri County Enterprise Development Fund as at 30 June,2019, and of its
rformance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with

lnterna nal Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and comply with the
Nyeri C nty Enterprises Development Act, 2018 and the Public Finance Management
Act, 201

Basis fo Opin ion

was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
s (lSSAls). I am independent of Nyeri County Enterprise Development Fund in

appli to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe that the audit
evide I have obtained is sufficienl and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significa
report in

ce in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
he year under review

Reporl ol Auditor-Ceneral on Nyeri County Enterprise Development Fundlor the yar ended 30 June, 2019

l

Elephone: +:54{zol 3zr4ooo
E-mail: inf o@oagkenf a.go.ke
website: www.oagkf nya.go.ke



o
REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) ot the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matter described in the Basis for Lawfulness and Effectiveness
in Use of Public Resources section of my report, I confirm that, nothing else has come to
my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been applied laMully
and in an effective way.

Basis of Conclusion

Award of a Contract for Disbursement of the Loans

During the year under review, the Fund awarded a contract for disbursing the Enterprise
Development Fund loans to Kenya Commercial Bank. This was done through tender
number CGNfiTCl25'112018-2019. However, a review of the evaluation report revealed
that one of the criteria for evaluation was a bank where the Government of Kenya has
ownership. Out of the banks that tendered for the disbursement of the loans, only one
bank had Government shares thereby disadvantaging the other banks who had shown
interest in the tender contrary to Section 58(2) of the Public Procurement and Asset
Disposal Act, 2015.

Consequently, the Fund was in breach of the law.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1 )(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, lconfirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to
believe that internal controls, risk management and governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether processes
and systems of internal control, risk management and governance were operating
effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate lo provide a basis for my conclusion.

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Nyeri Count!, Enterprise Fund/or the year ended 30 June, 2019

2



Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal control as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control, risk management and governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
ability of Nyeri County Enterprise Development Fund to sustain services, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of
accounting unless Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Fund or to cease
operations.

Managernent is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial stalements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how the entity monitors compliance with relevant
legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and systems
are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance and risk
management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditois report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in

Repo o/ the |udilor-General on Nyeri Counly Enterprise Fundfor the yeor ended 30 June, 2019
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an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of lhe Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1 Xa) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) ot the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSA|s. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, pro.iections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
Fund's policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the ability of Nyeri County Enterprise Development Fund to sustain its services. lf I

conclude that a material uncertainty exists, lam required to draw attention in the
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Fund to cease sustaining its services.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Nyeri County Enterprise Fund for the year eruled 30 June, 2019

4



Na c s
AUDITO GENERAL

Nairobi

25 October, 2021

- }\t

Repo o/th+ Audi,or-General on Nyeri County Enterpise Fundfor the year ended 30 June, 2019ls

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Nyeri County Enterprise Development Fund to express an
opinion on the financial statements.

. Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS ONTHE ENTITY (specify entity name)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 20I9

Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Transfers from the County Govemment
Public contributions and donations 1

30.000,00

Fines, penalties and levies IJ

Erroneous Deposits 86.925.00
Transfers from other
service-in-kind

governments gifts and 9

30,086,925.00

Rendering of services l0
Sale of water and electricitv
Rental revenue from facilities and equipment

973.6t0.25Finance income
Deposit)

extemal investments( Call

ll
I]
li

l4
Total revenue 973,610.25
Expenses

l5Use of goods and services

Employee costs l6
Remuneration of direclors ll

l8Depreciation and amortization expense

Repairs and maintenance l9
Contracted services l20
Grants and subsidies l2t
General expenses 1) 390.750.00
Finance costs ( bank Charges) 2-l 5.705.00
Total expenses

Gain on sale of assets l.+

Gain on foreign exchange transactions
Unrealized gain on fair value of investments 25

Impairment loss 26 ( ) (-)
Surplus beforc tax (577,l ss.2s) 30,086,925.00
Taxation 27 (-) ( )

l

Notes 20tE-2019
k

20170-2018

Kshs

Revenue from exchange transactions

Agency fees

Other income

-i96,.155.00
Other gains/(losscs)
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Surplus/( d eficit) for the period/year (s77,l ss.2s) 30,086,92s.00

Remission to National Treasury 5l
Net Surplu r for the vear (s77,1ss.25) -i0,086,92s.00)
Attributable to

Surplus/(de icit) attributable to minority interest

Surplus attr

entity
ibutable to owners of the controlling
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The notes set out on pages 1 to 6 form an integrar part ofthese Financiar Statements

l



STATEME
ASAT30J

T OF FINANCIAL POSITION
E 2019

Assets

tsCurrent ass
30.086.925.0030.077,t55.2528h equivalentsCash and car

29from exchange transactionsReceivables
30Receivables Iiom non-exchange transactions

long-term receivables fromrtion of
sactionsexchange tr

C urrenl

Inventories
32

30.086,925.0030.077.155.25

N<ln-currer t asscts
JJ

32Investmen
i4Intangible assets
i5propertylnvestment

535.000.00ceivables tiom exchange transactionsLong term

30,612,155.25

Liabilities
abilititsCurrent li

i6ther payables from exchange transactionsTrade and
86.925.0037: deposits from customersRelundablt

:18Provisions
.39rse obligationFinance lei
43ion of borrowingsCurrent

,10lCOmeDeferred ir

Employee benelit obligation 41

received in advancePayments
52Taxation

Non-curr ent liabilitics
.llnt employee benefit obligationNon-curre

nt provlsronsNon-currt
.+-l

sBorrowinl
J+Service c< rncession liability
5i:ax liabilitiesDeferred I

)

l

Nyeri Counttt Enlerprise Development fund
Annual Repprts and Financial Statements
For the yeaJ ended June 30,2019

Notes 2018-2019

KshstI 2017-2018

31

Investments

Property , phnt and equipment

Total assels



For the year endcd June -30, 20I 9

The Financial statements set out on pages I to 6 were signed on behalfofthe Board of Directors bv:

Administrator of the Fund Chief Of ficcr Finance

Nyeri County Enterprise Developmentfund
Annual Reports antl l-inancial Statements

A^ro ,7"l iottu r"AuC 
1

t>,,, . LS.9,Llj

Name

ICPAK Member Numb

Datc 3.S.1' J:ot.?

Name:

Total lia bilitics
Net asscts

Reserves

Accumulated surp lus
s77 .t s5.25 30.000.000.00Capital Fund
30.035.000.00

net assets and IiabilitiesTotal
30,6 r 2,15s.2s 30.086.925.00

(r

l -]

l

I

I
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30.IUNE 20I9

At July l,2017
Revaluation gain

Transf'er of excess depreciation on

revaluation
(-)

Deferred tax on excess depreciation

Fair value adjustment on

investments

quoted

'lotal comprehensive income

30,000.000.00
Capital/Development grants received

during the year

(-)
'fransfer of depreciatior/amortisation

from capital fund to retained earnings

(-) (-) (-)Dividends paid - 201 7

(-) (-)Interim dividends paid - 201 8

(-)

30.000,000.00At June 30,20t8

At July 1,2018

lssue of new share capital

Revaluation gain

(-)
Transfer of excess depreciation on

revaluation

Defened tax on excess depreciation

quotedLll)F'air value adjustment

Orrlinary lRevaluat
share capital | ,....""

Fair - ralue
adjustment
reserve

I Retained

| ""-ios,
I Proposed
I

ldividends
I

Crpitall-
Development

Grants/Fund

'I'otalr;; I

Proposed tlnal dividends



Nyeri County E nterprise
rual Reports and Fin

For the l car ended .Iune

Development fund
ancial Statements
30, 201'9

lnvestments

comprehensive incomeTotal

Capital/Developmenl grants received
during the year

Transfer of depreciation/antortisation
from capital fund to retained earnings (-)
Dividends paid - 201 S

(-) (-) (-)Interim dividends paid - 2019
(-) oI)roposed final dividends
(-)

At June -i0,2019

Note

I

l

Fot ilem'r lhot ore not common in the financial statements, the enrity should include a note on u,hat they relate ro - either on rhe'face of the slatement ofchanges in equiry/ner assers or among the noles to rhe financial stotements.

';:;,:;;,?!,:::;::;::{::::: dn etabof ote note describing what rhe amounts retate to rn such instances a restatement of the

Fair l.alue
adjustmcnt
resen,e

Proposed

dividends J Development J Total

CepitrU

IG rants/Fund

Ordinrry Revaluation
share capital I rsserve

Retained
eeraings
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STATEMEI'{T OF CASH FLOWS
I.'OR THE AR ENDED.]O.ITINE 20I9

Cash flou's I rom operating activities
Receipts
Property taxes

Refundable <leposits 86.92s.00

Fines, penah ies and levies

Licenses and permlts

Govemment grants and subsidies 30.00,000.00

Rendering ol services

Sale of good s

Finance income( lnterest on call deposit) 973,610.25

Other income. rentals and agency fees

973,610.25 30,086,925.00
Payments
Compensation of employees
Revenue deposits transferred 86.925.00
Finance cosi
Rent paid

Taxation paid

Other paymonts 396,455.00

500,000.00Loans issued

983,380.00
Net cash flows from operating activities t5 (9,,769.7s)

Cash flows rom lnvesting activltles
Purchase of property, plant, equipment and intangible assets (-) (-)
Proceeds frc ,m sale ofproperty, plant and

Equipment

Decrease in fnon-current receivables
Increase in investments (-) (-)
Net cash flt ws used in investing activities (, (-)
Cash flows from linancing activities
Proceeds frc m borrowings
Repayment !f bonowings (-) (-)
lncrease in r eposrts

Net cash flr ws used in financing activities (-) (-,
Net increas e/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

(,
Cash and ca h equivalents at I JULY l8 30.086,92s.00

Cash and c -30,077,155.25 -10,086,925.00rsh equivalents at 30 JUNE 28

()

2018-20 r 9 20t7-20t8
Kshs lKshs

Total Receipts

Total Payments
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STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JI'NE 2019

2018-2019 2018-2019 20I8-2019 20 t 8-201 9 20t 8-2019
Revenue Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs
Property taxes

(-)
Public contributions and donarions (-) (-)
Fines. penalties and levies (-) (,
Licenses and permits

Govemment grants and subsidies

Rendering of services r-) (-)
Sale ol'goods

C)
Finance Income 973,6t0.25 973.610.25

sposal, rental income and agency
f'ees

Cains on di
973.610.25

(-)

Totat incomc (-) (,
Expenscs

Compensation of employees (-)
Goods and services (-) 396.455.00 (-)
Finance cosl (-) (-)
Rent paid (-)
Taxation paid

Other payments (,
Grants and subsidies paid 30,000,000.00 500.000.00 29,1 03,545.00
Total expcnditure 30,000,000.00 (-) 896,455.00 29,I 03,545.00
Surplus for the period

l

lr)

Actual on
comparable
basis

I Original budgct Final budgetAdjustments Performance
differcncc

Kshs

I

I

I
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Budget notes

L Provide explanalion oJ'differences between actual and budgeted amounls (1076 over/ under) IPSAS 24.11

2. Provide an explanation of changes between original and final budgel indicating whelher the difference is due lo reallocations or other

causes. (IPSAS 24.29)

3. ll'here the total of actual on comparable basis does nol tie to the slatement of Jinancial performance totals due to diJferences in

accounting basis(budget is cash basis, statement offinancial performance is accrual) provide a reconciliation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I. GENERAL INFORMATION

2

- Entity is estabrished by and derives its authority and accountabirity from - Act. The entirvis wholly owned by the Government of Kenya and is domicired i, r"rr". 
-ir," '.r,,r,r1.

principal activity is -

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for themeasurement at re_valued amounts of certain items of property, plant and equipment,
marketabre securities and financiar instruments at fair varue, impaired assets al theirestimated recoverabre amounts and actuariaIy determined liabilities at their present value.The preparation of financiar statements in conformity with Internationar pubric SectorAccounting Standards (rpSAS) arows the use of estimates and assumptions. It arsorequires management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the entitv*,saccounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgem# ;, ;;,,;l;i;;
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the finan;iar statements. are discrosed
in Note -
The financiar statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya Shirings. which isthe functional and reporting currency of the entity.

The financiar statements have been prepared in accordarce with the pFM Act, the statecorporations Act (incrude any other appricabre regisration), and Internationar public
Sector Accounting Standards (lpSAS). The accori-rting policies arJopted have beenconsislently applied to all the years presented.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDAR-DS

i. Relevant new standards and amendments to published standards effective for theyear ended 30 June 2019

J

Stantlartl Inrpact

IPSAS.IO:
Public Sector

Combinations
The standard covers public sector combinations arising from
exchange transactions in which case they are treated similar-ly with
IFRS 3(applicable to acquisitions only). Business combinations and
combinations arising from non_exchange transactions are covered
purely under Public Sector combina
(State the impact of the standard ro

Applicable: l " ,Ianuary 2019

tions as amalgamations
the entity* if relevant)

tl

I

I I

l
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Nyeri C$unty Enterprise Devetopmenl fund
AnnuatlSepons and Financial Stalements
For theltear ended June 30' 2019

NOTEq TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3 OPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS (Continued)

New and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not yet effective in

the year ended 30 June 2019

Applicable: 1't January 2022:

The objective of IPSAS 4l is to establish principles for the financial

reporting of financial assets and liabilities that will present relevant

and useful information to users of financial statements for their

assessment of the amounts, timing and uncertainty of an entity's

future cash flows.

IPSAS 4l provides users of financial statements with more useful

information than IPSAS 29, by:

. Applying a single classification and measurement model

for financial assets that considers the characteristics of the

asset's cash flows and lhe obiective for which the asset is

held:

. Applying a single forward-looking expected credit loss

model that is applicable to all financial instruments subject

to impairment testing: and

. Applying an improved hedge accounting model that

broadens the hedging arrangements in scope of the guidance.

The model develops a strong link between an entity's risk

management strategies and the accounting treatment for

instruments held as part ofthe risk management strategy.

(State the impact of the standard to the enlily if relevant)

.

Standard Effective date and impact:

IPSAS 41:

Financial

Instruments

IPSAS 42:
Social Benefits

Applicable: l't January 2022

The objective of this Standard is to improve the relevance. faithful

representativeness and comparability of the information that a

reporting entity provides in its financial statements about social

benefits. The information provided should help users of the financial

statements and general purpose financial reports assess:

(a) The nature of such social benefits provided by the entity:

(b) The key features of the operation of those social benefit

schemes; and

(c) The impact of such social benefits provided on the entity's

financial performance, financial position and cash flows.

(State the intpact of the slandard to lhe entily if relevant)

l_i



Nyeri Counry) Enterprise Development fund
Annual Reports and Financial Stotements
For the year ended June 30, 2019

{

ur. Early adoption of standards

The entity did not early - adopt any new or amended standards in year 2019

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Revenue recognition
i) Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Fees, taxes and fines
The entity recognizes revenues from fees, taxes and fines when the event occurs
and the asset recognition criteria are met. To the extent that there is a related
condition attached that would give rise to a liability to repay the amount, deferred
income is recognized instead of revenue. Other non-exchange revenues are
recognized when it is probable that the future economic benefits or service
potential associated with the asset will flow to the entity and the fair value ofthe
asset can be measured reliably.

Transfers from other government entities
Revenues from non-exchange transactions with other govemment entities are
measured at fair value and recognized on obtaining control of the assel (cash,
goods, services and propert,v-) if the transfer is free from conditions an,l it is
probable that the economic benefits or service potential related to the asset will
flow to the entity and can be measured reliably. Recunenl grants are recognized in
the statement of comprehensive income. Developmentrcapital grants are
recognized in the statement of financial position and realised in the statement of
comprehensive income over the useful Iife of the assets thal has been acquired
using such funds

l4
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NOTEq TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

I

4 SIiMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONtiNUCd)

c)i Taxes (Continued)

Deferred lax

] p"r.o"a tax is provided using rhe riabirity method on temporary differences between

the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting

purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except in

respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in controlled

entities. associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing ofthe reversal ofthe

temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary

differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future'

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporaly differences, the carry

forward of unused tar credits and any unused tax losses' Deferred tax assets are

recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against

which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward ofunused tar credits

and unused tax losses can be utilized, except in respect of deductible temporary

differences associated with investments in controlled entities, associates and interests

in joint ventures. deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable

that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit

will be available against which the temporary difl-erences can be utilized'

The canying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and

reduced to the extent thar it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be

available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized

deferred tax assets are re-assessed ar each reporting date and are recognized to the

extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax

asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to

apply in the year when the asset is realized or lhe liability is settled, based on tax rates

land tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date'

Defened tax relating to items recognized outside surplus or deficit is recognized

outside surplus or deficit. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the

underlying transaction in net assets.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right

exists to set off current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred

taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority'

t1
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continuetl)

,, SUMMARy OF SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
c) Taxes (Continuetl)

Expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of sales tax, except:
! when the sares tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverabre

from the taxation authority, in which case. the sales tax is recognized as part ofthecost ofacquisition ofthe asset or as part ofthe expense item. as applicable
i When receivables and payables are stated with the amount ofsales tax included
The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authoriry isincluded as part of receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.

d) Investment properfy

Sales tu-r

lnvestment properties are measured initially at cos
carrying amount includes the replacement cost
rnvestment property at the time that cost is incurred
and excludes the costs ofday-to_day maintenance of

t, including transaction costs. The
ol conrponents of an existing
if the recognition criteria are met

an investment property.

Investment property acquired through a non-exchange transaction is measured at itsfhir value ar the date of acquisition. Subsequent tl initiat recognition, invesrmentproperties are measured using the cost model and are deprectated over a 30_yearperiod.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of orwhen the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no futureeconomic benefit or service potentiar is expected from its disposar. The differencebetween the net disposar proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized inthe surplus or deficit in the period of de*ecognitio_'n.
Transfers are made to or lrom investment p.op.n1.onl1 *hen there is a change in use.

e) Property, plant and equipment
All property. prant and equipmenl are stated at cost ress accumurated depreciation andimpairment rosses cost incrudes expenditure thal is directry attributabre to theacquisition of the items. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment arerequired to be repraced at intervars, the entity ,."ognir", such parrs as individuar assetswith specific usefur rives and depreciates ttrem aJco.aingty. Likewise, when a majorinspection is performed. its cost is rccognized in the carr]ing amount ol-the pranr andequipment as a repracement if the recognition criteria are sarisfied. A, other repair andmainlenance costs are recognized in surprus or deficit as incurred. where an asset is

i":., 
i.l"d in a non-exchange transaction for nil or nominal consideration the asset isinitially measured at its fair value.

t8
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

MMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIC-ltlS (Continued)

l,cases

Finance leases are leases that transfer substanlially all of the risks and benefits

incidental to ownership of the leased item to the Entity. Assets held under a finance

lease are capitalized at the commencement of the lease al the fair value of the leased

property or, if lower. at the present value of the future minimum lease payments' The

Entity also recognizes the associated lease liability at the inception ofthe lease. The

liability recognized is measured as the present value of the future minimum lease

payments at initial recognition.

f)

Subsequent to initial recognition, lease payments are apportioned between finance

charges and reduction ofthe lease liability so as to achieve a constanl rate oi interest on

the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognized as finance costs

in surplus or deficit.

An asset held under a finance lease is depreciated over the useful life of the asset.

However, ifthere is no reasonable certainty that the Entity will obtain ownership ofthe

asset by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the

estimated useful life of the assel and the lease term.

Operating leases are teases that do not lransfer substantially all the risks and benefits

incidental to ownership of the leased item to the Entity. operating lease payments are

recognized as an operating expense in surplus or deficit on a straight-line basis over the

lease term.

Intangible assets

lntangible assets acquired separately are initially recognized at cost' The cost of

intangible assets acquired in a non-exchange transaction is their fair value at the date of

the exchange. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any

accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. lnternally generated

intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and

expenditure is reflecled in surplus or deficit in the period in which the expenditure is

incurred.

The useful life ofthe intangible assets is assessed as either finite or indefinite

Research and develoPment costs

The Entity expenses research costs as incurred. Development costs on an individual

project are recognized as intangible assets when lhe Entity can demonstrate:

h)

l9

s)
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The technical feasibility of complering the asset so that the asset will be available
for use or sale

Its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset

How the asset will generate fi.rture economic benefits or service potential
The availability ofresources to complete the asset

The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development.

l0
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NOTES TO THE FINANCTAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Conrinued)

appropflaltons are added to the original budget by the entity upon receiving the

Budget information

The original budget for FY 2018-2019 was approved by the National Assembly on -.
Subsequent revisions or additionar appropriations were made to the approved budget in
accordance with specific approvars flom the appropriale authorities. The additionar

J

b

respec

record

tive approval s in order to conclude the final budget. Accordingly, the entity

[he entity's budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual income and

3xpenditure 
disclosed in the financiar statements. The financiar statements are prepared

pn accrual basis using a classification based on the nature ofexpenses in the statement
pffi,ancial performance, whereas the budget is prepared on a cash basis. The amounts
In the financial slatements were recast from the accruar basis to the cash basis and
teclassified by presentarion to be on the sarne basis as the approved budget. A
fomparison of budget and actual amounts, prepared on a comparable basis to the

fpproved budget, is then presented in the statement ofcomparison ofbudget and actuar
hmounts.

l

ln addition to the Basis difference, adjustments to amounts in the financiar statements

fe also made for differences in the formats and classification schemes adopted for the

fresentation 
ofthe financial statements and the approved budget.

,f statement ro reconcire the actuar amounts on a comparabre basis included in the

ltatement 
of comparison of budget and actual amounts and the actuals as per the

{tatement offinancial performance has been presented under section - ofthese financiai
Statements-

l

") f'*"t
f,urr"n, in"o-" ,n*

$urrent income tax assets and riabirities for the current period are measured at the

ed addit ional appropriations of on the 2018-2019 budget following the
governing body's approval

ffnount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates
lax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantivel

acted, at the reporti ng date in the area where the Entity operates and generates
ble income.

urrent income tax relating to items recognized directly in net assets is recognized in
t assets and not in the statement of financial performance. Management periodically
aluates positions taken in lhe ta.x returns with respect to situations in which

afnlicab
arpropn

le tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
irte

t6



Nyeri County Enlerprise Developmenl fund
Annual Reporls und Financial Slatemenls
For lhe yeur ended June 30, 2019

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

a) Revenue recognition (Continued)

ii) Revenue from exchange transactions

Rendering of services

The entity recognizes revenue from rendering of services by reference to the stage

of completion when the outcome ofthe transaction can be estimated reliably. The

stage of completion is measured by reference to labour hours incurred to date as a

percentage oftotal estimated labour hours.

where the contract outcome cannot be measured reliably, revenue is recognized

only to the extent that the expenses incurred are recoverable'

Sale of goods

n"r"nue from the sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and

rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, usually on delivery of the

goods and when the amount of revenue can be measured reliably and it is probable

that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will

flow to the entity.

Interest income

Interest income is accrued using the effective yield method. The effective yield

discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial

asset to thal asset's nel carrying amount. The method applies this yield to the

principal outstanding to determine interest income each period'

Dividends
Dividends or similar distributions must be recognized when the shareholder's or the

entity's right to receive payments is established.

Rental income

Renlal income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted

for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and included in revenue'

t5
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Nyeri Courul Enlerprise DeveloPmerrl fund
Annuol R?ports and Financial Statements
For the yigr ended June 30,2019
NOTES TIO THE FINAIICIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

{ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

h) earch and development costs (Continued)

Following initial recognition of an asset, the asset is carried at cost less any

lccumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of the

dsset begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use. [t is

lmortized over the period of expected future benefit. During the period of

J"u"lopr"nt, the asset is tested for impairment annually with any impairment losses

iecognized immediately in surplus or deficit.

p Financialiostruments

J Financiot assas

I nilial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of IPSAS 29 Financial Instruments: Recognition

and Measurement are classified as financial assets at fair value through surplus or

deficit. loans and receivables. held-to-maturity' investments or available-for-sale

financial assets, as appropriate. The Entity determines the classification of its

financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receit ahles

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or

determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial

measurement. such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost

using the effective inlerest method, less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated

by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and lees or costs

that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. Losses arising flrom

impairment are recognized in the surplus or deficit.

Held-lo4nalurilll

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed

maturities are classified as held to maturity when the Entity has the positive

intention and ability to hold it to maturity. After initial measurement, held-to-

maturity investments are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest

method. Iess impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any

discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an inlegral part ofthe

effective interest rate. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in surplus

or deficit.

]



Nyeri County Enterprise Development futrd
Annudl Reports sttd Financiol Stutements
For lhe year ended June 30, 2019

I mpu irment of li n a n c ial asset s

The Entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or an entity of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
entity of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result ofone or more events that has occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (an incurred .loss event,) and that loss event has an
impact on the estimated future cash florvs of the financial asset or the entity of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
the following indicators:

ll
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lnty Enterprise Developmenl fund
lporls and Financial Slatements
lar ended June 30,2019
iO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4MARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued),l SUN

f"*"l) Financial instruments (Continued)

h) rch and development costs (Continued)

Fi nan cial assets (Co nt in ue d)

Impairment oflinancial assels (Continued)

) The debtors or a entity of debtors are experiencing significant financial

d iflicu lty

) Default or delinquency in interest or principal payments

F The probability that debtors will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganization

F Observable data indicates a measurable decrease in estimated future cash flows

(e.g. changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults)

Financial liabilities

I n it ial recog nitio n and meas ure me nl

Financial liabilities within the scope of IPSAS 29 are classified as financial

liabilities at fair value through surplus or deficit or loans and borrowings' as

appropriate. The Entity determines the classification of its financial liabilities at

initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans

and borrowings, plus directly attributable transaction costs'

Loans und horow'ing

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently

measured at amortized cost using the effective inlerest method Gains and losses

are recognized in surplus or deficit when the liabilities are derecognized as rvell as

through the effective interest method amortization process'

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premlum on

acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate'

Inventories

lnventory is measured at cost upon initial recognition. To the extent that inventory was

received through non-exchange transactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost)' the cost

ofthe inventory is its fair value at the date ofacquisition.
23
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Nyeri Countyn Enlerprise Developmenl funtl
Annual Reports and Financial Stalemenls
Fot the yeor ended June 30, 2019

Costs incuned in bringing each product to its present rocation and conditions are
accounted for. as follows:

F Raw materials: purchase cost using the weighted average cost method

! Finished goods and work in progress: cost of direct materials and Labor and a
proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but
excluding borrowing costs

l.l
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NOTES +O THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONtiNUCd)

l

4 SUI{'IMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONtiNUCd)
I

I

i) 
lnventories 

(Continued)

iqn.. initiat recognition, inventory is measured at the lower of cost and net realizable

L^Ir.. Ho*.ue.. io the extent that a class of inventory is distributed or deployed at no

thurg. o, for a nominal charge, that class of inventory is measured at the lower of cost

pnd cunent rePlacement cost.

]Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations'

jless the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the

sale, exchange. or distribution.

Inventories are recognized as an expense when deployed for utilization or consumption

in the ordinary course of operations ofthe Entity'

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Entity has a present obligation (legal or

constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources

embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the

obligation and a reliable estimate can be made ofthe amount ofthe obligation

Where the Entity expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed' for example'

under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset only

when the reimbursement is virtually certain'

The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of financial

performance net of any reimbursement.

)

Contingent liabilities
TheEntitydoesnotrecognizeacontingentliability,butdisclosesdetailsofany
contingencies in the notes to the financial statements, unless the possibility of an

outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service Potential is remote'

Contingent assets

The enlity does not recognize a contingent asset. but discloses details of a possible

asset whose existence is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or

more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Entity in the notes to

the financial statements. Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure that

developments are appropriately reflected in the financial statements lf it has become

virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits or service potential will arise and

the asset's value can be measured reliably, the asset and the related revenue are

recognized in the financial statements ofthe period in which the change occurs'

25



Nyeri County Enlerprise Developmenl fundAnnua.l Repo s and Financiat Sfaremlnts
For the year ended June 30, 2019

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Conrinued)

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

k) Nature and purpose of reserves

The Entity creates and maintains reserves in terms ofspecific requirements. Enrity toslate Ihe reserves maintained and appropriate policies adopted.

I) Changes in accounting policies and estimates

The Entity recognizes the effects ofchanges in accounting poricy retrospectivery. Theeffects of changes in accounting policj are applied prospectir"ly ii ."rrorp."tin"
application is impractical.

m) Employee benefits

Retirement benefit plans

The Entity provides retiremenl benefits for its emproyees and directors. Definedcontribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which an entity p"y, n*"icontributions into a separate entity (a fund), and wi, have no legar or 
"on.t.rair"obligation to pay further contributions if the fund croes not hord sufficient 
^r"t, 

to puy
alr emproyee benefits rerating to employee service in the current and prior periods. Theconrributions to fund obrigations for the payment of retirement b"n"fitr'a.. 

"ha.gedagainst income in the year in which they become payable.

Defined benefit plans are post-employment benefit prans other than defined_contribution plans. The defined benefit funds are actuarially valued tri-annuall, ;; ;;projected unit credit method basis. Deficits identified are recovered through rump sumpayments or increased future contributions on proportional basis to 
"ll ;;l;;;;;employers. The contributions and lump sum payments reduce the post_".ploym"ni

benefit obligation.

n) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initiary accounted ror at the ruring rate ofexchange on the date of the transaction. Trade creditors or debtors denominated inforeign currency are reported at th€ statement of financial position reporting date byapplying the exchange rate on that date. Exchange di#erenc"s arising from thesettlement ofcreditors. or from the reponing ofcreditlrs at ratcs different from those atwhich they were initia'y recorded durinj the period, are recognized as income orexpenses in the period in which thev arise.

26
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orrowing costs

wing costs are capitalized against qualifying assets as part of property, plant and

uipment.

27

puch borrowing costs are capitalized over the period during which the asset is being

pcquired or constructed and borrowings have been incurred. Capitalization ceases when

bonstruction of the asset is complete. Further borrowing costs are charged to the

[tatement of fi nancial performance.
l



Nyeri County Enterprise Developmenl fund
Annual Reports ond Finoncial Stalements
For the year ended June 30, 2019

NOTES TO THE FINAT\ICIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

p) Related parties

q) Service concession arrangements

The Entity analyses all aspects of service concession arangements that it enters into in
determining the appropriale accounting treatment and disclosure requirements. In
panicular, where a private party contributes an asset to the arrangement, the Entity
recognizes that asset when, and only when, it controls or regulates the services the
operator must provide together with the asset. to whom it must provide them, and at
what price. In the case ofassets other than 'whore-of-rife' assets. it contrors, through
ownership, beneficial entitrement or otherwise - any significant residuar interest in the
asset at the end ofthe arrangemenl. Any assets so recognized are measured at their fair
value. To the extent that an asset has been recognized. the Enlity arso recognizes a
corresponding liability, adjusted by a cash consideration paid or received.

r) Cash and cash equivalents

The Entity regards a related party as a person or an entity with the ability to exert
control individually orjointry, or to exercise significant influence over rhe Entity, or
vice versa. Members of key management are regarded as related parties and comprise
the directors. the CEO and senior managers.

cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and sash at bank, short-term deposits
on call and highly riquid investments with an originar maturity of three months or ress.
which are readily convertibre to known amounls ofcash and are subject to insignificant
risk of changes in value. Bank account balances include amounts held at the Central
Bank of Kenya and at various commercial banks at the end of the financial year. For
the purposes ofthese financiar statemenls. cash and cash equivarents also include short
term cash imprests and advances ro authorised pubric officers and/or institutions which
were not surrendered or accounted for at the end ofthe financial vear.



Nyeri Qounty Enlerprise Developmenl fund
Annuol Reports and Finoncial Statements
For thl vear ended June 30, 20t9

l"
NOTEE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONtiNUCd)

i

4 SiJMMARY OF SIGNIFICAIIT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONtiNUEd)

i

sl Comparative figures

Where necessary comparative figures lor the previous financial year have been

amended or reconfigured to conform to the required changes in presentation.

Subsequent events

There have been no events subsequent to the financial year end with a significant

impact on the financial statements for the year ended June 10,2019.

l

$tcxtrrca,xr JUDGMENTS AND SoLJRCES oF ESTIMATIoN UNCERTAINTY

ih" pr"purution of the Entity's financial slatements in conformity with IPSAS requires

riranagement to make judgments. estimates and assumptions that affect the reported

fmounts of revenues. expenses. assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent

liabilities. at the end ofthe reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions

dnd estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying

{mount of the asset or liability affected in future periods. State alljudgements, estimates

{nd assumptions made: e.g.

h,stimates and assumptions

e key assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty

t the reporting date. that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the

rrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described

low. The Entity based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the

solidated financial statements were prepared. However, existing circumslances and

sumptions about t'uture developments may change due to market changes or

ircumstances arising beyond the control of the Entity. Such changes are reflected in the

sumptions when they occur. IPSAS I . 140

seful lives and residual lalues
e useful lives and residual values of assets are assessed using the following indicators to

nform potential future use and value from disposal

The condition ofthe asset based on the assessment ofexperts employed by the Entity

The nature ofthe asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technology and

processes

The nature ofthe processes in which the asset is deployed

Availability of funding to replace the asset

Changes in the market in relation to the asset

29
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Nyeri County Enterprise Development fund
Annual Reports and Financial Stutemenls
For the year ended June 30, 2019

5 SIGNIFICANT JUDGMENTS AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Provisions

Provisions were raised and management derermined an estimate based on the infbrmation
available. Additional disclosure ofthese estimates ofprovisions is included in Note -.

Provisions are measured at the management's best estimate ofthe expenditure required to
settle the obligation at the reporting date. and are discounted to present value where the
effect is material.

(include provisions applicable for your organisation e.g. provision for bad debts,
provisions ofobsolete stocks and how management estimates these provisions).

6 PROPERTY TAXES REVENUE

(Provide brief explanation for this revenue)

PUBLIC CONTRIBUTIONS AND DONATIONS

(Provide brief explanation for this revenue)

7

Actual
Taxable land and buildings
Residsntial

Commercial

State

Sub- total property and taxes

Penalties

Income forgone (-) (-)
Total property taxes revenue

The Creen Belt Movement

Other public donalions

Total transfers and sponsorships

Reconciliation of public contributions and donati0ns

Balance unspent at beginning ofthe year

Current year receipts

Conditions met - transferred to revenue

Conditions to be met - remain liabilities

i0

Description

KShsKShs I

2017-20182018-2019

20t7-20182018-2019

KShs

Description

KShs
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TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMf,NTS (Continued)

ES, PENALTIES AND LEVIES

Fr rel levy

T )ta I

[:ncond itional grants

Operational grant

o ther grants

C onditional grants
N ational housing grant

ational infrastructure grantN

I) rovincial health grant

Social services grant

u asic services subsidy
'I ransportation fu nd (intemational funding)

I otal government grants and subsidies

ll

(Prbvide brief explanation tbr this revenue)

TRANSFERS FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS

2017-20182018-2019

KShsKShs
Dfscription

Fines

[?91?-]q$
I Kstrs

120r8-2019D[scription
I Ksht

Qther organizational grants



Nyeri County Enterprise Developrnetu fund
Annual Reporls ond Financiol Slotemenls
For the jeot ended June 30, 2019
9b) TRANSFERS FROM MINISTRIES, DEPARTMENTS AND AGENCIES

Ministry/State
Department

- Ministry
'I'otal

(Ensure that rhe amount recorded above as having been received from the Ministry futtyreconciles ro the amount recorded by rhe seruring entiry Ministry. An acronwredge'ment
note'/receipt should he raised in favour of the sending Ministry. The detairs of the
reconciliation have been included under appendix _1

tl

Namc of the
Enrity
sending lhe
grant

Amount
recogoized to
Statement of
Comprehensive
Income
KShs

Amount
deferred
under
deferred
income
KShs I KShs

the

hs lxstrs

grant 2018-20r 9a

tYear

rmoA tlItr ol

ised lll ecomrocogn

ln riducapita rng

fund.r
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NOTES T THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

IO RE ERING OF SERVICES

ide brief explanation for this revenue)

OF GOODS

(P ide brief explanation for this revenue)

I2 RE AL REVENUE FROM FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT

vide brief explanation for this revenue)

Wastp management (solid waste)

Wast| management (sewerage and

sanit{tion)
Service fees

Water qualitl

Qualily assurance

Total revenue from the rendering of
servites

Salc of grxrds

Sale bfelectricity
Sale bf water

Sale bf books

Sale bfpublications
Other( include in line with your organisation)

Total revenue from thc sale of goods

Stra ight-lined operating lease receipts

Con tingent rentals
'fot rl rentals

1.1

(

Descfiption l8-2019 i20t7-20t8
ll$hs I(Shs

70t7-2018
iKShs

Descfiption 2018-2019

lxsts

20r7-201E20tE-2019Destription
KShs KShs

-+



Nyeri Coung Enterprise Development fund
Annual Reporls and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2019
13 FINANCE INCOME - EXTERNAL INVESTMENTS

(Provide brief explanation for this revenue)

Cash investments and fixed deposits 973.610.25
lnterest income from Treasury Bills
lnterest income from Treasury Bonds
Interest from outstand ing debtors
Total finance income
investments

elrternal

973,610.25

-.14

2017-20r8
(st .

Dcscription 2018-2019

racr..
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THE FINANCL{L STATEMENTS (Continued)

ER INCOME

: All income should be classified as far as possible in ihe relevant classes and other

e should be used to recognise income not elsewhere classified)'

YE,E COSTS

ln urance recoveries

k infrastructure leviest]
cture improvement feeln

e from sale oftender

ices concession incomeS

lls development levYS

ln
'fotal othor income

tricitylrl
ter

Pr fessional services

St bscriptions

1' rtal good and services

S laries and wages

E

p(

ployee related costs - contribu

nsions and medical aids

tions to

T
St

vel. motor car, accommodation'

bsistence and other allowances

using benefits and allowances

0 ertime payments

and other bonuses

S ial contributions
penditure recharged to caP ital projectsE

t mployee costs

35

15 USEOFGOODSANDSERVICES

8D+cription
1,l2018-2019

KShs KShs

Inr

from disposal of assets

I 2or8-20r9t--
lKShs

Dtscription
ICShs

2017-2018

Security

2018-2019
KShs

2017-2018

KShs



Nle County Enterprise Development fund
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2019
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

17 REMUNERATION OF BOARD MEtrIBERS

I8 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE

I9 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE

20 CONTRACTED SERVICES

Chairman's Honoraria

Directors emoluments

Other allowances 232.300.00
Total director emolunrents

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Investment properly carried at cost

Total depreciation and amortization

Prcrperty

lnvestment property earningrentals

Equipment and machinery

Vehicles

Furniture and tittings
Computers and accessories

Other

Total repairs and maintenance

Actuarial valuations

Investment valuations

Property valuations

Total contracted services

i(r

Description l9 2017-2018

I KShs

2017-201820r8-2019

KShsKShs

Desc

Descriptioo z0t7-2018I 20r6-2019

I Ksrs KShs

20r7-20r8
KSh.

i20r8-2019Description

I KShs
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O THE FINAIICIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

AND SUBSIDIES

RAL EXPENSES

unity developmentCc

Irrd ion initiatives and programs

So ial development

Co unitv trust

Sp ng bodies

To tal grants and subsidies

vertlslng

in fees

dit fees

Cr ferences and delegations

Iting feesC

C', umables

tncltyF-l

Fr el and oil
uranceIn

I,r

I, nses and permits

C icals

ater purification cost
5 00-I)r stage& Telephone
44.700.00I,l

II
R

inting and stationery

re charges

tal

Sr uritv costs

Sr treatment costs

SI lls development levies

ln ventory scrapprng

leconrmunicationT
232.300.00I] ard meeting expenses

r 08.750.00
o
AI

general expenses( Data comPiling

d business visits)
190.750.00.I gcneral expenses

31

I 2017-201E20rv2019Dt$cription
-+ I KShsKShs

2At7-20t8120t8-2019Description f
KShs , KShS

expenses



Nyeri County Enlerprise Development fund
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2019
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

23 FINANCE COSTS

*Borrowing costs that relate to interest expense on acquisition of non- current assets and
do not qualis for capitalisation as per IpSAS 5: on borrowing cosrs should be included
under this note.)

24 GAIN ON SALE OFASSETS

23 UNREALIZED GAIN ON FAIR VALUE TNVESTMENTS

Borrowings (amortized cost)*
Finance leases (amortized cost)

Unwinding of discount

Interest on Bank overdrafts
Interest on loans from commercial banks
Total finance costs

Property. plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Other assets not capitalised

Total gain on sale of assets

lnvestments at fair value

Total gain

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Total inrpairment loss

38

26 IMPAIRMENT LOSS

Dcscription 2018-2019 tttl t-LU t6
I(.Sh-KShs

Descriptlon 2018-2019

KSts -- --+I

2017-2018

KSbs
I

--t

2017-2018

KShs

2018-2019Description

KShs

I 2018-2019 i

T KSb' i
2$t7-2AfiDescription

KShs
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A'TION

Cr lrrent income tax charge

Dr :ferred tax: [Note 53]

Rt

ter

:lating to original and reversal of
nporary differences

In
st:

come tar expense reported in the

rtement of financial performance

39

201&2019
KShs KShs

DtscriDtioo 2017-2016



Nyeri County Enterprise Development fundAnnuol Reports and Financiot Stateminrs
For lhe year ended June 30, 2019
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

28 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Current account 30.077 ,t 55.25 30.086.92s
On - call deposits
Fixed deposits account

taS cff ar () an/ n'lort ge

Others(specify)

OT ta cash and cas h u \a len tscq 30,077,155.2s 30.086,925

(The amount should agree \eith the crosing and opening barances as incruded in thestatement ofcash flows)

28 (a). DETAILED ANALYSTS OF THE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Current accou nta

tive Bank of KeC ll 30,077,155.25 10.086,925.00
LI Bank. etc.

Sub- total 30.077.155.2 s 30.086 25.00

0sitsh On - call d
Ken Commercial bank

Bank - etc.E UI

Sub- total

c Fixed d ts accoun t
Kctl ll C] Iltm() rcc alI kban
tsank B
Sub- total

d Staff car loan/ m<r il c
Ken Com mercial bank
llank B
Sub- total

s Ie Othe
Cash in transit
cash in hand

csaM-
Sub- total
Grand total

40

i 20r8-201e 20t7-20tE
i l(shs KShs

Description

20la20t
KShsAccount number KShs

9tFinancial institution 20r7-2018
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Reporls and Financial Slulemerrls
year ended June 30, 2019
TO THE FINA|ICIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

CEIVABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANS;\CTIONS

VEN'I'ORIES

;ervice ,water and electricity debtors
( )ther exchange debtors

(-) (-)I .ess: impairment allowance

fotal cu rrent receivables

I {on-current reccivables

I -ong term debtors

I 'ublic organizations
(,(,

(,(-)( lurrent portion transferred to current receivables

fotal non-cu rrent receivables

lotal receiyables

Current receivables
)roperty tax debtors

Jther debtors (non-exchange transactions)
( )(-)Less: impairment allowance

Iotal current receivables

Consumable stores

Medical supplies

Spare parts and melers

Water for distribution

Other goods held for resale

Catering

Total inventories at the lower of cost and net

realizable value

,1t

RECEIVABLES FROM NON-EXCHANGE CONTRACTS

Description 2018-2019 2017-2018

KShs KShs

Cu rrenl receivables

Less: impairment allowance

t-
I Kshs

I 2ol7-2olEDescription

I KShs
| 20r&20r 9

pescription l-zora-zois

IKshs -
I zoru-zora
I t(Strs



Nyeri County Enterprise Developmenl funtl
Annual Reports qnd Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2019
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

32 INVESTMENTS

d) Shareholding in other entities

For investments in equity share listed under note 32 above, list down the equity
investments under the following categories:

a) Investment in Treasu r,v bills and bonds
Financial institu tion
CBK
CBK
Sub- total

b) InYestmeDt }} ith
Banks

Financial Institutions/

Bank x

Bank y

Sub- total

c)

Sub- total

Equity investments (specify )
Equity/ shares in entity -

Grand total

Shs Shs Shs

Entity A
Entity B

Entity C
Entity D

42

Descriptiol 2018-2019 | 2017-2018

KShsKShs

vcar

Nomi

yearolding

Name ofl

held

roi, IE^:-
I

value of I value of
shares I share.

I value of
lshares

Indirect
shareholding

Eflective I

shareholdine I

I Direct
lshereh

I No of shares

1 
Curreot j Prior

entity where j

investment is I



Nyeri County Enterprise Developmenl fund
Annual Reporls and Financial Stalements
For lhe yeur ended June 30, 2019
NOTES T() THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

33 PIIOPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

At lJuly 2017

Additions
(-) (-)(-)(-)Disposals (-)

(-) G)(-)(,Trans lers/adj ustments

,r.iJifh ,lune 20l8
Additions

(-) (-)(-)Disposals
(,(-) (-)(,'Iran sferiadj ustments

At 30ih June 2019

Depreciation and impairment
(-) (-)(-) (-) (-)(-) (-)Ar lJ uly 2017

(-)(, (,(-) (,(-) G)Depreciation
(-)(-)(-)hrpairment

At30 ,f une 2018
(-) (-)(-) ( )o (-)Depreciation

Disposals
(-)(-)o (,lnrpairment

(-)(-)C) (-)Transfer/adjustment

t idrlJune 20 l9
Net booh values

niiolh.lu* zotY
At 30'h June20l8

finclude brief description oJ WIP as

a footerl
.13

l#--
lOther
I ess"ts

ICPIL'n
lShs

I Plant and
lequipment
I sts

progres LToral
Shs ShsCost

oes lvehiclg I iittiogs
lShs lShs

Buildi
IShs

Capital
Work in

lFuroiture
landLaud end I Motor



Nyeri Counly Enterprise Development fiuntl
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the year ended .Iune 30,21 19

NOTES TO THE FINANCTAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

34 INTANGIBLEASSETS.SOFTWARE

35 INVESTMENTPROPER'IY

36

Cost

At beginning of the vear

At end of the year
Addi tl ns-lo ntemal dc c o cllprn
At end of the year

rtb.aAm o rion tnl entrm tpa
At beginning of the ) ear
Amortization
At end of the year
Impairment loss

At end of the year
NI}V

At beginning of the year
Additions
Depreciation

At end of the year

Trade payables

I)ayments received in advance
Employee advances

Third-party payments

Other payables

oT ta trade nil od ht rC b1l lcs]pr

.{.1

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

2018-2019

KSh. -

Description

KShs
I zorz-zols

Additions

and

2017-2018

KShs

Description 2018-20 r 9

ltKShs

| 20r8-20*-TKsh.Description

KShs

!,
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Enle rp rise Deve I oP men t fu n d
and Financial Stotentents

nded June 30, 2019
DABLE DEPOSITS F-RONI CI.ISTOMERS

Consut er deposits

89,925.00
Other

deposit

deposits( Revenue erroneously

)

lepositsTotal r

,1<

20t7-201E2018-2019
KShs

Descriftion
KShs



Nyeri County Enterprise Development fund
Annuol Reports and Financial Stat"^irr,
For the year ended June 30, 2019
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

38 CURRENT PROVISIONS

39 I'INANCE LEASE OBLIGATION

.IO DEFERRED INCOME

Balance b/d (1.07.2018)
Additional Provisions
Provision utilised (-) (-) (-) (-)

ue to discount and time valueChange d

for money (, (-) (-) o
I rans fers from non SI onsprovl
't'otal provisions as at 30.6.2019

KShs KShs KShs KShs
Within current year

'fotal provisions

National govemment

lntemational firnders
[)ubl ic contributions and donations
'I'ntal deferred income

Lcave
provision

Description

KShs

Bonus

Total
Tsh'

Other
provisiooprovl3ron

KSh. KShs

-current

lMinimum
Itease
jpayments

lFuture
lfinance
lcharge,

Present
value of
minimum
lease

payments

Description

2017-2018

portionterm olLong lease pavments

Description 20t7-20t8
KShs KShs

2018-2019



Nyeri Cou E n te rpris e Deve I op me n t fu n d
Annual R and Financial Statements
For the year ded June 30, 2019

The deferred income movement is as follows;

Balance brought lorward
Additions
Transferq to Capital fund (-) (-) (-) (-)

Transfer$

statement

to income
(-) (-) (-) (-)

Other trahsfers (-) (-) (-) (-)
Balance carried forward

J7

National
goyernment

International
funders

Public
contributions and
donations

Total



Nyeri County Enterprke Development.fund
Annuol Reports and Financial Slatements
For the year ended June j0, 20 t 9

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4I EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The entity operates a defined benefit scheme for alr fu -time employees from July l, 20lg
The scheme is based on - percentage of sarary of an emproyee at the time of retirement.
During the year, - actuarial valuers were engaged to value the scheme. The liability at the
end of the year is as follows:

The entity also contributes to the starutory Narional Social Securitv Fund (NSSF). This is a
defined contribution scheme registered under the National Social Security Act. The entity,s
obligation under the scheme is limited to specific contributions legislated from time to time
and is currently at Kshs.- per employee per month.

KShs KShs KShs KShs KShs
Cunent benefi t obligation

benefitNon-current
obligation

Total employee benefits
obligation

al tiuiI t)() a bethe l-)llr n I'o cth eargr v
Changes in valuation during the year

Valuation at end of the year

.l,l

Defined
benefit
plan

Description

7

8

I
I

20

20

Other
Provisions

20I8-
2019

iPost-

I 
employment
medical
benefits

I Kshs i Kshs

2017-20182018-20r9



Nyeri Coun Ente rprise Deve lop me nl fu n d
Annual orts and F'inancial Statemcnts
For the vea ended .lune 30,2019

12 NON- URREN'T PRoVISIONS

(NB current portion deducted in this note should tie to line on current portion
tr edfrom non- current provisions under note 38)

.13 BO OWINGS

Balar

the ye

ce at the beginning of

Provi sion utilised (-) o (-) C)
Chan

time.
Ie due to discount and

ralue for money

Less Current portion (-) (-) (-) (-)

Total deferred income

Balance at beginning ofthe period

Extenial borrowings during the year

Domebtic borrowings during the year

Repaljments of extemal borrowings during the period

ents ol domestics borrowings during theRepa

peri

Balance at end of'the period

-19

j Long

I leave

Descliptioo

I KShs KShssKSh
_l

KShs

seratce

I Tot.t
Other
ProvisionsGratuitr

Additional Provisions

Description i 2018-2019

l-KSt.
2017-2418

KShs



Nyeri County Enterprise Development fund
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
F'or the year ended June 30, 2019

The analyses of both extemal and domestic borrowings are as follows:

(NB : lhe lotal of this slatement should tie lo note 43 totals, Current portion of borrowings
are lhose borrowings thot are payable wilhin one yedr or the next Jinancial year,
Addilional disclosures on terms of borrowings, nature of borrowings, securily and interest
rales sltould be disclosed).

14 SERVICECONCESSIONARRANGEMENTS

External Borrowings
Dollar denominated loan from '- organization'
Sterling Pound denominated loan from
organisation'

vvv

Euro denominated loan from zzz orgartisation'
Domestic Borrowings
Kenya Shilling loan from KCB
Kenya Shilling loan from Barclays Bank
Kenya Shilling loan from Consolidated Bank
Total balance at end ofthe year

Short term borrowings(current portion)
Long term borrowings
Total

Fair value of service concession assets recognized
under PPE

Accumulated depreciation to date ( ) (-)
Net carrying amount

Service concession liability at beginning ofthe year
Service concession revenue recognized

Service concession liability at end of the year

-50

2018-2019

KSht
+-+_

----l
I 2017-201E

lKshs

| 2017-2018
-----J

Description

KShs

9

Description i20lE-201e 2017-2018
KShs KShs



Nyeri Coun E n le rp r is e Deve I op me n t futt d
Annual Rep rts and Financial Statements
For the yea ended June 30. 20l9

NOTES TO HE FINANCIAL STAI'EMENTS (Continued)

45 CASH GENE,RA'I'ED F-ROM ()PERATIONS

(The al of this statemerrl slrould tie to the cosh Jlow section on net cash flows from/ used
ns)

16 FIN CIAL RISK MANAGENIEN'I'

tn

ity's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including credit and liquidity
d effects of changes in foreign currency. The entity's overall risk management

f risk. The entity does not hedge any risks and has in place policies to ensure that
only extended to customers with an established credit history.

nancial risk management objectives and policies are detailed below:

The

risks

credit i

progr locuses on unpredictability of changes in the business environment and seeks to
the potential adverse elfect of such risks on its performance by setting acceptable

Ieve ls

Surplua for the year before tax
Adjusted for:
Depreciation

Non-cabh grants received C) (-)
Contributed assets (-) (-)
lmpairment

Gains and losses on disposal ofassets (-) (-)
edifi on to provlslons

Contribution to impairment allowance

Financd income (-) (,
Finance cost

Working Capital adjustments
lncrease in inventory (-) (,
Increasb in receivables (-) (-)
Increase in deferred income

l

llitil! in payables

Increasp in payments received in advance

Net cadh flow from operating activities

@

@

The entity's

5l

20t7-20t8
KShrKShs

0 91I E20



Nyeri County Enterprise Developmenl fund
Annual Reports and Financial Stalemerrls
For llte year ended June 30, 2019

(l) Credit risk

The entity has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable
to pay amounts in full when due. Credit risk arises lrom cash and cash equivalents, and

deposits with banks, as well as trade and other receivables and available-for-sale tlnancial
investments.

Management assesses the credit quality of each customer. taking into account its financial
position, past experience and other factors. lndividual risk limits are set based on intemal
or extemal assessment in accordance with limits set by the directors. The amounts
presented in the statement of financial position are net of allowances for doubtful
receivables, estimated by the entity's management based on prior experience and their
assessment of the current economic environment.



Nyeri Coun
Annual ll.c

E n terprise Development fund
rts and Financial Statemcnts

For the yea ended .Iune 30, 2019

NOTES T THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

46. FINAN IAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(DC it risk (Continued)

carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements representing

entity's maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any

co obtained is made up as follows:

: The totals column should tie to lhe individual elements of credit risk dkclosed in
th e nl ity's slate me nt of Ji n a n c ial pos it io tt)

customers under the fully peribrming category are paying their debts as they continue
. The credit risk associated with these receivables is minimal and the allowance for

llectible amounts that the entity has recognised in the financial statements is
c idered adequate to cover any potentially irrecoverable amounts. The entity has

ficant concentration ofcredil risk on amounts due from -.

board ol directors sets the entity's credit policies and objectives and lays down
rs within which the various aspects ofcredit risk management are operated.

At 30 ,lune 2019

Re

tra

exchange:eivables from
rsactions

Re

tra
ceivables from non-exchange

lsactions

Ba nk balances

At 30 June 201[i

Re

tra
exchangeceivables from

nsactions

Re

tra
ceivables from non-exchange

nsactions

To tal

SI

5l

Total
amounl
Kshs

Fully
Past due

Kshs
Impaired
Kshs

performing
Kshs

Total

Bamk balances



Nyeri Counly Enterprise Dcvelopmenl fund
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30 ,2019

(ii) Liquidit-v risk management

Ultimate responsibility lbr liquidity risk management rests with the entity's directors, who
have built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework lor the management of the
entity's short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements.
The entity manages liquidity risk through continuous monitoring of forecasts and actual
cash flows.

l'he table below represents cash flows payable by the entity under non-derivative financial
liabilities by their remaining contractual maturities at the reporting date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within l2
months equal their carrying balances, as the impact ofdiscounting is not significant.

54



Nyeri Coun
Annual Repo
For the year
NOTES TO

.16. FINANC

E nte rprise Develop menl fund
antl Financial Slaleme,rts

ded June 30, 2019
HE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

AL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continucd)

(iD Liq ty risk management (Continued)

(iii) Ma risk

The has put in place an internal audit function to assist it in assessing the risk faced

b1'

ln

N1 et risk is the risk arising fiom changes in market prices. such as interest rate, equity
pnc and foreign exchange rates which will affect the entity's income or the value of its

of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage

ontrol market risk exposures within acceptable parameters. while optimising the

. Overall responsibility for managing market risk rests with the Audit and Risk
gement committee.

The entity's Finance Department is responsible for the development of detailed risk
ement policies (subject to review and approval by Audit and Risk Management

Co ttee) and for the day to day implementation ofthose policies.

hold
and

entity on an ongoing basis. evaluate and test the design and effectiveness of its
accounting and operational controls.

has been no change to the entity's exposure to market risks or the manner in which
ages and measures the risk.

At 30 June 2019

Trade payables

Current portion of borrowings

Provisions

Deferred income

Emptroyee benefit obligation

Total
At 30 June 2018

Tradb payables

Currbnt portion of borrowings

Provisions

Defeirred income

Empf oyee benefit obligation
Total

ltm

lLess than
---l month

lxstrs

I 1 Betn'een l-3
I

I months

lKshs

0ver
months
l(sht

l-
Total

Kshs



Nyeri County Enterprise Development Juntl
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2019

a) Foreign currency risk

The entity has transactional currency exposures. Such exposure arises through
purchases of goods and services that arc done in currencies other than the local
currency. Invoices denominaled in foreign currencies are paid after 30 days from the
date of the invoice and conversion at the time of payment is done using the prevailing
exchange rate.

I
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ended June 30, 20 l9

THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

AL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

risk (Continued)

) Foreign culrency risk (Continued)

The canying amount of the entity's foreign cunency denominated monetary assets

and monetary liabilities at the end ofthe reporting period are as follows:

The entity manages foreign exchange risk form future commercial transactions and

recognised assets and liabilities by projecting for expected sales proceeds and

matching the same with expected payments.

At 30 June 2019

Financial assets

lnvestments

Cash

Debtors

Total financial assets

Financial l,iabilities
Trade and other payables

Bonowings
Total financial liabilities
Net foreign currencv asset/(liability)

s7

r Ksh
I

ix"ts

Othcr
currencies
K.shs



Nyeri Coun4, Illterprise Development fund
Annual Rcports and Financial Statements
For the.v-ear ended June 30,20t9

At 30 June 2018

Financial assets

Investments

Cash

Debtors

Total financial assets

Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables

Borrowings

Net foreign currency asset/(liabilitv)

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The following table demonstrates the effect on the entity's statement of
comprehensive income on apprying the sensitivity for a reasonable possible change
in the exchange rate of the three main transaction currencies, with all other variables
held constant. The reverse wourd arso occur ir the Kenya Shilling appreciated with
all other variables held constant

58

lon

-TK.t.

Total

I Kshs i Ksbs

Other
currcncies

Total financial liabilities

a



Nyeri Co E nle rp r ise Deve lop me nt fu n d
Annual R rts and Financial Slatemenls
For lhe year
NOTES TO

nded June 30, 2019
HE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

{6 FINAN IAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

( iii) arket risk (Continued)

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis (Continued)

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the entity's financial condition may be adversely

affected as a result of changes in interest rate levels. The entity's interest rate risk

arises from bank deposits. This exposes the entity to cash flow interest rate risk. The

interest rate risk exposure arises mainly fiom interest rate movements on the entity's

deposits.

Management of interest rate risk

To manage the interest rate risk, management has endeavoured to bank with

institutions that offer favourable interest rates.

Sensitivity analysis

The entity analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis by conducting a

sensitivity analysis. This involves determining the impact on profit or loss ofdefined

rate shifts. The sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk assumes that all other

variables. in particular foreign exchange rates. remain constant. The analysis has

been performed on the same basis as the prior year.

Using the end ofthe year figures, the sensitivity analysis indicales the impact on the

statement of comprehensive income if current floating interest rates

increase/decrease by one percentage point as a decrease/increase of KShs - (2018:

KShs - ). A rate increase/decrease of 5% would result in a decrease/increase in profit

before tax of KShs - (201 8 - KShs -)

tr

2019

Euro t0%
t0%USD

2018

10%Euro

10Y"TJSD

(()

Change in
currcoc-v rate
Kshs

Effect on Profit
I before tax

Effccl

:uit)
Kshs

on

i Kshs

)



Nyeri County Enterprise Developme fund
Annuol Reports and Financial Statements
For lhe year ended June 30, 2019
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

46 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
a) Financictl in.ttrwnents mea.sured at fair talue

Determination of fair value and fair values hierarchv

IPSAS 30 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the inputs
to those valuation techniques are observable or unobservable. Observable inputs
reflect market data obtained from independent sources; unobservable inputs reflect
lhe entity's market assumptions. These two types of inputs have created the
following fair value hierarchy:

Level I - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities. This level includes listed equity securities and debt instruments on
exchanges.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level I that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly
(that is, derived from prices).

Level 3 - inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs). This level includes equity investments and debt
instruments with significant unobservable components. This hierarchy requires
the use of observable market data when available. The entity considers relevant
and observable market prices in its valuations where possible.

a



!

Nyeri Co E nterprise Development fun d
Annual orts and Financial Statements
For the 1-ea ended June -10, 2019

Ilowing table shows an analysis of financial and non- financial instruments recorded at

ue by level ofthe fair value hierarchy:

There were no transf'ers between levels 1,2 and 3 during the year.

'l 
he

t-air

Ar 3( I .Iune 2019

Fina ncial Assets

Quot ed equity investments

Non- financial Assets

lnves tment property

l.and and buildings

Ar 3r )June 2018

F'ina ncial Assets

Quot :d equity investments

Non- financial Assets

Invet ilment property

[-and and buildings

6l

I ILevel
k,t,

tll.er'"|- 3

lx,n,
Total

.I

iKshs

Level



Nyeri County Enterprise Development fund
Annual Reports and Financial Slotements
For the year ended June 30, 2019

NOI'ES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

.t6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGIiMIIN-I' (Continued)

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

a) Financial instruments not measured at fair value (Continued)

Disclosures of fair values of financial instruments not measured at lair value have not
been made because the carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of their fair
values.

iv) Capital Risk Management

The objective ofthe entity's capital risk management is to safeguard the Board's ability to
continue as a going concem. The entity capital structure comprises of the following funds:

Revaluation reserve

Retained eamings

Capital reserve

Total funds

Total borrowings
Less: cash and bank balances (-) (-)
Net debV(excess cash and cash equivalents)

Gearing

,

Kshs

2018-2019 i2017-2018
Kshs
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D PARTY BALANCT]S

Entities and other parties related to the entity include those parties who have ability to

control or exercise significant influence over its operating and financial decisions.

Related arties include management personnel. their associates and close family members.

ent of Kenya

The Go

enlity's
ernment of Kenya is the principal shareholder of the entity, holding 100% of the

term I

E n le rp r ise Deve I op me n t fu n d
rts and Financial Statements

quity interest. The Govemment of Kenya has provided full guarantees to all long-

ers of the entity, both domestic and external. Other related pa(ies include:

The National Government;

The Parent Ministry;

(iovern

i)
ii)
iii )

63

47 RELATE

Nature of related party relationships



Nyeri County Enterprise Developme tfund
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30,2019
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

47. RELATED PARTY BALANCE (Continued)

Government of Kenya (Continued)

iv)
v)
vi)
vii)

Key management;

Board of directors;

a

,

Transactions with related parties

a) Sales to related parties

Sales of goods to -

Sales of services -

Total

b) Grants from the Government

Crants from National Government

Grants liom County Government

Donations in kind
I'otal

c) E,xpenses incurred on behalf of related party.

Payments ofsalaries and wages for - employees
Payments for goods and services for -

'I otal

d) Kev management compensation

Directors'emoluments

Compensation to the CEO

Compensation to key management

'l'otal

I,J

2018-2019

IGh. -
| 2017-2018

Kshs



Court c ase - against the entity

Jarantees in favour of subsidiaryBank g

Total

sed forAuthor
sed and contracted for

Total

a

Nyeri Coun E n te rp ris e D eve I oP me nt fu n d
Annual R rts antl Financiol Stotements
For the ended June 30, 2019

THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)NOTES

remi

48 SEG ENT INFORMATION

(71/he an organisation operates in differe nt geographical regions or in departments, IPSAS

l8 on segmental reporting requires an entity lo presenl segmenlal information of each

geogr hic region or department to enable users undersland the entity's performance and

alloca on ofresources to different segments)

49 CON INGENT ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(Give tails)

50 CAPI AL COMMITMENTS

NB ital commilme nts are commilments to be carried out in the next financial year and

are dis losed in accordance with IPSAS 17. Capital commitmenls may be those that have been

aulhor ed by the board but al the end of the year had not been conlructed or those already

conlrct ted.for and ongoing)

5l DM 1]NDS/STIRPt,I.IS REMISSION

In rdance with Section 2 l9 (2) of the Public Financial Management Act regulations,

regulat entities shall remit into Consolidated Fund. ninety per centum of its surplus funds

in the audited financial statements after the end of each financial year. Or: the entity

Kshs -0 (FY 2018 Kshs -. The entity did not make any surplus during the year (FY

il) and hence no remittance to the Consolidated Fund.[ Entities to edit accttrdinglyl201 8

l)

2017-2018Contidgent liabilities
KshsI Kshs

2018-2019

Capital commitments -fIzorz-zort2018-2019

KshsKshs

Author



Nyeri County Enterprise Developmenl fund
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2019

At beginning of the year

Income tax charge for the year (note 27)

Under/(over) provision in prior year/s (note 27)

Income tax paid during the year (-) (-)

At end of the year

52 TAXATION

IProvide short appropriate explanations as necessary]

53 DEFERRI.]D TAX t,Ir\IiII,IT}'

Deferred tax is calculated on all temporary differences under the liability method using the

enacted tax rate, currently 30%. The net deferred tax liability at year end is attributable to
the following items:

a

Accelerated capital allowances

Unrealised exchange gains/(losses)

Revaluation surplus

Tax losses carried forward (-) (-)

Provisions for liabilities and charges (-) (-)

Net deferred tax liabilitv/(asset)

The movement on the deferred tax account is as

follows:

Balance at beginning olthe year

Credit to revaluation reserve (-) (-)
Under provision in prior year

Income statement charge/(credit)

Balance at end ofthe year

66
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Nyeri Counly Enterprbe Developme tfund
Annuol Relorts and Financial Statetnents
For the yeal ended June 30, 2019

fin lrdinary circumstances public seclor entitie.t undet

Hovrfver. in specific cases where this is applicable
guid$nce on accou ing for income taxes from IAS I 2)

' IPSAS are not expected to pay taxes.

an organisation is supposed to seek
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Nyeri Cou,rt! E terprise Development f ,ut
Annual Repo s otrtl Finunciul Sk entents
For the yeur ended June 30,2019

APPENDIX l: PROGRESS ON FOLLOW UP OF AUDITOR RECOMMENDATIONS

The tbllorving is the summary of issues raised by the external auditor, and management comments that were provided to the aLrditor. We have
nominated focal persons to resolve the various issues as shown below with the associated time frame within which we expect the issLres to be resolvecl.

lssue has been resolved

and financial

statements have been

prepared in good time

Fund manager Resolved

Late submission

of Financial

statements

Wrong format

and

presentation of

report and

financial

statements

The Fund manager

attended the training

on financial statements
preparation by the

national treasury and is

now able to prepare

the right format

Fund Ma nager Reso lve d

Cash balances

including figures

meant for

County revenue

The amounts have

already been

transferred to the right

account.

Chief officer
Finance

Resolved
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N-t' eri Co unt-t' Ettterprise Dcvelopnrcnt funtl
.4nnud Reports ond Finonciol Stolements
For thc.t'eur ended Juna 30, 2019

APPENDIX III: INTER-ENTITY TRANSFERS

ENTITY NAME:
reak down of Transfers from the State Department of -B

FY 2018/2019

it Recurrent Grants

Bank Statement

Datc

Amount (KShs) Indicate the FY to *,hich

'folal

t, Developmcnt Grants

Datc

Bank Statement Amount (KShs)

'lirtal

C Direct Payments

Ilank Slatcnr ent

l)ate
Amount (KShs)

the arnounts relate

lndicate the FY to which

72

I
I

-t

the amounts reiate

Indicate the FY to which
the amounts relate
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Where Recorded/recognized
Date
received

Others -

must be

specific
Deferred
Income Receivables

Capital
Fund

Statement of
Financial
Performance

Total
Amou nt

KES

Nature:
Recurrent/Deve

lopment/Others

Recurrent
Ministry of Plann ing

and Devolution

Development
Minishy of Plann ing

and Devolution
Donor FundUSAID

Direct Payment

Total

t I
I

N),eri Conn0, Enlerprise Developmenl fund
Annuol Reporls and Financial Slalemenls
For lhe lear ended Junc 30' 2019
APPENDIX IV: RECORDING OFTRANSFERS FROM OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES

Name of
N{DA/Donor
Transferring
funds

thc

thc

as per bank
statement

Total
Tra nsfers

du ring
the Year

14

a

Ministry of Planning

and Devolution


